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CORE  VALUES

At Flying Cement, core values are always given importance. These values are not only 

theoretical but in actual fact delve  deep in the hearts of entire team.

These values are reflected with in the name of FLYING itself.

F = Focus          We  believe in  focusing on reducing cost and improving quality thereby  

offering profit to our shareholders.

L = Leadership     Our objective is to lead as a cost effective competitor. We understand the 

demand of cement industry at a global level as well as the needs of people 

within Pakistan.

Y = You           Flying Cement always maintains 'You first' approach, not only to please our 

customer but also to satisfy our shareholders. 

I = Initiatives           Taking  initiative  in incorporating  modern  technology to reduce cost and to                            

                                 improve quality.

N = New          We are pioneer in using new ideas and strategies for the cost effective and 

quality cement manufacturing.

G = Global We strive to be reckoned with dignity in global market.

BUSINESS ETHICS

vTransparency in transactions

vSound business policies 

vJudicious use of Company's resources

vAvoidance of conflicts of interest

vJustice to all

vIntegrity at all levels 

vCompliance of laws of the land

STRATEGIC GOALS

vLead Cement business

vManufacture prime quality products 

Maintain operational, technological and managerial excellence

Create new opportunities for business growth and diversification

Eliminate duplication of resources to economize cost

Maximize productivity and expand sales



THE VISION

“To be a premier quality cement manufacturing unit engaged in nation building 
through the most efficient utilization of resources”. 

THE MISSION

“Successfully deliver quality cement by using innovative practices with the ultimate 
goal of increasing the satisfaction of our customers”.

“To minimize the cost of production by using state-of-the-art technology and 
utilizing our experience in increasing profits for our shareholders”.



Quality Policy

The quality policy of the cement is monitored through the chemical laboratories located at the site 

installed with latest instrumental analysis techniques directly linked through PLC to control the 

process of manufacturing automatically keeping lowest variation brand from the required 

values/parameters laid by the British Standards BS-12-1991.

Flying Cement Company is committed to produce high quality Ordinary Portland Cement as per 

International and British Standards to achieve customers' satisfaction.

The company is committed to abide by all applicable legal and regulatory requirements and shall 

strive for continual improvements including prevention of pollution by establishing and 

monitoring of its Quality and Environmental objectives.

The Chairman and Management are committed to communicate and maintain this policy at all 

levels of the company, and achieve continual improvement through teamwork.

Environmental Protection

Management of the company is committed towards environmental protection and prevention of 

pollution. FLYING has been playing its role towards the development of a better society and a 

better future through continual improvement in the Environmental Management System.

Cement Industry is normally considered to be highly un-friendly to the environment because of its 

inherent process difficulties.  The management with the efforts of its employees succeeded in 

meeting the environmental objectives and targets after evaluating legal requirements, 

organizational aspects, technological options and other requirements. 
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NOTICE OF 25
th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that 25th Annual General Meeting of the members of Flying Cement 

Company Limited will be held on Friday the October 26, 2018 at 10.00 a.m. at Heaven 

Banquet Hall 343-D-1, Nespak Society,
 

Lahore
 

to transact the following business:
 

 

1.   To confirm minutes of 24th 
Annual General Meeting held on 28th 

of October 2017.
 

2.
 

To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year 

ended June 30, 2018 together with Directors’ and Auditor's reports thereon.
 

3.
 

To appoint external Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration for the next 

financial year 2018-19.
 

4.
 

To elect seven
 

directors of the company as fixed by the Board of Directors U/S 159
 

subsection (1) of the Companies Act, 2017. The names of the retiring directors are:

 

Mr. Kamran Khan                                  Mr. Momin Qamar

 

Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan                     Mr. Qasim Khan

 

Mrs. Samina Kamran                           Mr. Imran Chaudhry

 

Mr. Muhammad Tawassal Majid

 

5.

 

To transact any other business with the permission of Chairman.

 

 

(By Order of the Board)

 

 
 
 
           

- -

 

(Muhammad Azeem)

 

COMPANY SECRETARY

 

Lahore: October 05, 2018
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Attested copy of the shareholder’s CNIC must be attached with the proxy form. The contents of 
Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2017

 

will apply in this regard.

 
 

3.

 

The Original Computerized Identity Card of the shareholder is required to prove his/her identity 
along with account details etc at the time of attending meeting. In case of corporate entities, the 
Board of Directors’ resolution

 

/ power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be 
submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form.

 
 

4.

 

The Shareholders who, have not yet submitted copy of their valid CNIC or NTN, are once again

 

requested to immediately submit

 

the same.

 
 

5.

 

The Annual Report is being transmitted to shareholders through CDs/DVDs

 

instead of sending 

these in Book form / hard copy in terms of SRO No. 470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016.

 

 

6.

 

The Annual Report for the Financial Year ended June 30, 2018

 

have been placed on 

Company’s website www.flyingcement.com However, if any shareholder desire to get the 

hard copy of Annual Audited Financial Statements, the same shall be provided free of cost 

within seven working days of receipt of such request.

 

 

7.

 

Members can also avail video conference facility in the cities where facility can be provided 

keeping in view the geographical dispersal of members. In this regard fill the application as per 

following format and submit to the registered address of the company 10 days before the date of 

Annual General Meeting. The video conference facility will be provided only If the company 

receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at 

geographical location, The company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference 

facility at least 5 days before the date of Annual General Meeting along with complete information 

necessary to enable them to access such facility. 

 

 

 

Notes:

1.

 

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 18, 2018

 

to October 
26, 2018

 

(both days inclusive)

 

for voting purpose at Annual General Meeting, Transfers received 
r, M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Limited, 1st Floor, 40 C, Block 6, 

P.E.C.H.S, Karachi - 75400

 

by the close of business on October 17, 2018

 

will be considered in 

time for the 

 

of attending the Annual General Meeting 

 

 

2.

 

A shareholder eligible to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her 
proxy to attend and vote.  Votes may be given personally or by proxy or by attorney in case of a 
corporate entity. In this case the instrument of proxy completed

 

in every respect, must reach to 
the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

 

in order by our Share Registra



8. Notice Under Section 244(1)b of the Companies Act, 2017 sent to the shareholders inviting  their 
respective claims against undelivered shares which have become undelivered as of 30 May, 
2017. After expiry of this notice period, an advertisement was published in News Papers for the 
information  of General Public as required under the law. 
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I / We ______________ of _________________________ being member of Flying Cement 

Company Limited, holder of _____ Ordinary shares as per Register Folio # / CDC Account # / 

Participant ID

 

# hereby opt for Video conference facility at _________________.

 

              

______________

 

Signature of shareholder

 

 



Flying Cement Company Limited
Annual Report 201810

                                                        
 
 
                                                    

                                        

Chairman’s Review

 
 

I am pleased to present a review on the performance of the Board and 
appreciate the Board to fulfill its commitments. There is a rising trend in 
production cost. Your company with the help of higher sales volume earned 
profit and showed 33% increase in sales volume.

 
 

In the year 2017-2018 the cement industry witnessed increase in sales keeping 
in view the growing demand of cement,

 

the company decided to add line 2 
enabling production from 2000 Metric Tonnage

 

to 4000 Metric Tonnage

 

which 
is in progress.

 

The Company 's  marketing network will be enlarged to whole of 
Pakistan, enabling to capture more share in the market

 

and Flying Cement will 
remain choice in the market.

 
 It is our commitment to all stakeholders

 

that we will
 

attain more share in the 
market and Flying Cement will be choice of the market.

 
 
  

 
 

Kamran Khan  

Chairman  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dated:

 

October, 05 2018
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

 
 

The Directors of your company have the pleasure to present before you the 

25th

 

Annual Report of your company along with duly audited Financial 

Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018.

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

 
Cement

 

growth in the Cement Industry reflected a sound increase of 13.84% 

during the year ended June 30, 2018 as compared with the year

 

2017. In the 

year 2018 capacity utilization of Cement

 

industry stood at 92.82% of the 

installed capacity as against 90.17% compared to the year 2017. This is the 

highest ever capacity utilization since the year 1992-93.

 
 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

 
 The main objective of the company is to manufacture and sell the Ordinary 

Gray Portland Cement.
 

 BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
 

 
The production and sales volume performance 
The production and sales volume figures for the year of your Company together 
with the comparative figures are as under: 

 

Particulars                                                  2018                       2017         
       

% of Increase                                                                            

(Metric Tons)
 

 

Cement Production                             
      

527,850
                   

396,992
            

32.96     
 

Cement Dispatches                            

      

525,695

                    

397,273

           

32.33 
 

The percentage increase in production and sales shows an excellent increase 
production of Cement in the year 2018.
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 Financial Performance

 A comparison of the key financial results
 
of your Company for the year ended 

June 30, 2018
 

is as under:
 

                Particulars                                                                    2018
                                

2017
 

                                                         

                                 
(Rupees in Thousands)

 
 Sales revenue Gross      

                                         
4,335,489

               
 

Less: Sales Tax/ Federal Excise Duty            1,425,129
              

 
Net: Sales revenue                                                   2,910,360                    

                     
Gross Profit                                                               256,885                       

 
Operating profit                                                         185,274                       

,  
Profit before tax                                                         233,134                      

,  
Net Profit after tax                                                     181,508                       

,  

Earnings per Share                                                         1.03                              
 

      
3,466,997

                 
996,772

 
2,470,225

 
203,357

 
142 590

  
198 881

161 256

0.92
 

EARNING PER SHARE  
 

The earning per share of the Company grew from Rs 0.92 for 2017 to Rs 1.03 

for the year 2018 under review.
 

 

DIVIDEND
 

 

The company has not declared dividend attributable due to non-availability of 
sufficient revenue reserve.

 
 

UPGARADATION OF PLANT LINE-2
 

 

The Company has visualized excessive
 
demand of Cement in coming years to 

come and has
 
planned

 
to enhance the capacity of Cement production from 

2000 Metric tons
 
to 4000 Metric tons. In this regard the management has 

arranged from National Bank of Pakistan the major finance, however the 
directors

 

also injected fresh funds from

 

their own sources. 
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All

 

related party transactions entered into are at arm’s length basis which were 
reviewed and approved by Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors of 
the Company in compliance  with the PSX Regulations of The

 

Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited

 

and

 

of the requirement of Section 208 of Companies Act, 
2017.

 
 

PRINCIPAL RISKS

 
 

The cement plant required smooth and continued power supply to run the plant 
smoothly and stabily. Updation of the power system in

 

our country is at risk all 
times.

 

Production,

 

distribution and instrument have not been updated since long,

 

so the main risk of the company lies with

 

supply of power to the plant

 

a 
principal risk.

 
 

Since in the Cement Industry there are giants leading the cement marketing,

 

distribution and are monopolising

 

the Cement Marketing . Undue holding of 
markets

 

and lowering the cement prices are tactics

 

to control other cement 
manufacturers which is ethically wrong practice for

 

the small cement 
manufacturing units.

 
 

IMPACT OF COMPANY’S BUSINESS ON THE ENVIRONMENT

 
 

The major impact of cement manufacturing business on environment is related 
to particulate matter and fugitive dust emissions of both inhalable and 
respirable micron sizes emitted from processes adopted for clinker production 
that cause a chronic fatal disease i.e. Silicosis. To overcome the dust problem 
raised by the plant the following measures have been taken by the 
management to make the environment problems minimize. The company has 
installed de-dusting equipment such as dust cyclones bag houses, personal 
protective equipment, speed limit controls and plantation, and for healthy 
environment at site the company has planted thousands of trees for healthy 
atmosphere. 

 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
 

 The Directors of the

 

Company are aware of their ethical duties towards

 

Society. 
The Company has arranged

 

three times serving

 

food to

 

the employees of head 
office,

 

factory staff
 

and visitors,
 

every year two persons
 

perform the Hajj from 
the staff,

 
serve packets to the deserving staff and others

 
during Ramzan-ul-

Mubarik
 

and preferential jobs to disabled persons.
  

 
WHISTLE BLOWING

 
 The management understands that through the use of a good Whistle Blowing 

Plan, they can discover and develop a powerful ally in building trust with its 
employees and manage fair and transparent operations. All the employees are 
protected from victimization, harassment and advised to immediately report to 
the higher management any of the following improper, unethical or illegal 
conduct of any colleague or supervisor to the management or otherwise. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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UNPAID  DIVIDEND AND UNCLAIMED  SHARES 
 

Notice Under Section 244(1)b of the Companies Act, 2017 sent to the 
shareholders inviting  their respective claims against undelivered shares which 
have become undelivered as of 30 May, 2017. After expiry of this notice period, 
an advertisement was published in News papers for the information of General 
Public as required under the Law.

 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 
 

Composition of Board of Directors is as under.
 

 
                

Description              Number of Directors
 

a)

     

Male                                   

   

6

 

b)

     

Female                               1

 
 

Catagoral Composition

 
 

1)

     

Independent Director          1

 

2)

     

Non Executive Directors     5

 

3)

     

 1Executive Director             

 
 

The requirement of representation of number of independent directors is being 
met in the coming election of Board of Directors at Annual General Meeting.

 
 

Name of Members of the Board of Directors

 

and its Committees.

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 
 

Mr. Muhammad Tawassal  Majid

   

Member

            

Independent Director

 

Mr. Kamran Khan

                    

Chairman 

         

Non Executive Director

 

Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan

        

Member

            

Non Executive Director

 

Mr. Qasim Khan

         

Member

            

Non Executive Director

 

Mr. Imran Chaudry

         

Member

            

Non Executive Director

 

Mrs. Samina Kamran

         

Member

            

Non Executive Director

 

Mr. Momin Qamar

         

Member

            

Executive Director

 
 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

 

Mr. Muhammad

 

Tawassal  Majid

       

Chairman

      

Independent Director

 

Mr. Qasim Khan 

   

Member

      

Non Executive Director

 

Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan 

              

Member

     

Non Executive Director

 
 

HUMAN

 

RESOURCE AND 

 

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 

Mr. Muhammad

 

Tawassal  Majid

 

Chairman

    

Independent Director

 

Mrs. Samina Kamran

                

Member

     

Non Executive Director

 

Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan 

               

Member

     

Non Executive Director
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CHAIRMAN REVIEW

 
 

The Chairman's review is enclosed and duly  endorsed by Board of Directors.

 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT

 
 

Company has formed Code of Conduct to run its business operations effectively.

 
 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

 
 

Statement of Compliance duly reviewed by Board of Directors and Auditors is 

annexed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

 
 The company will not pay any remuneration to its independent directors

 
except 

meeting fee for attending the Board and Committee meetings.
 

 
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

 
The Board of Directors has established an efficient system of internal financial 
controls, to  ensure  effective and efficient conduct of operations, safe guarding 
of Company's assets, compliance with applicable laws and regulations and 
reliable financial reporting.  

 

ECONOMY  OUTLOOK  
 

Elections in the country
 
have been successfully conducted and a smooth 

transition of power to the new government has also been
 

completed. This 
reflects a positive sign for the country’s economy. Inspite of unstable economy

 

of the country,
 

as the biggest challenge for the new Government has 
announced reforms to provide housing units

 
five millions

 
low cost houses for 

the masses
 

which will eventually result in increased construction activity in the 
housing sector. Moreover, renewed focus on CPEC projects still provide an 
excellent opportunity to the Government for achieving GDP growth, 
consequently, increased cement demand is expected in

 

the years to come. 
Stability in prices of fuel,

 

dollar rupee parity and

 

to curtail development budget

 

are

 

main issues of the economy to the present Government.

  
 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 
 

The Directors of your company review the Company’s strategic direction and 
business plans on a regular basis. The Audit Committee is empowered for 
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effective compliance of Code of Corporate Governance; we are taking all 
necessary steps to ensure good corporate governance in your Company

 

as 
required by the Code. As part of the Compliance,

 

we confirm the following.
 

 
        (a)

 

The financial statements prepared by the management present fairly its 
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in 
equity.

 
 (b)

 
Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the company.

 
 (c)

 
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in 
preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based 
on reasonable and prudent judgment.

 
 

(d)  International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan 
have been followed in preparation of financial statements. 

 

(e)  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored. 
 

(f)  There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern.

 
 

(g)
 

There has been no material departure from the best practices of 
corporate governance as detailed in the listing regulations.

 
 

(h)
 

Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.
 

 

(i)

 

No trade in shares of Flying Cement Company Limited

 

was carried out 
by the CEO, Head of Internal Audit, CFO, Company Secretary and their 
spouses and minor children except of those as reported to the 
regulatory authorities and disclosed in the annexed Pattern of 
Shareholding.

 
 

(j)

 

Reasons for significant deviations from last year’s operating results have 
been compared in the relevant section of the Directors’ report.

 
 

(k)

 

Information about taxes and levies is given in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

 

(l)

 

The company has planned to upgrade its production operations by 
enhancing production capacity of its plant. The matter has been 
disclosed to shareholders in the due time and also has been written in 
this directors’ report. 

 

(m)

 

Details of number of Board and Committees meetings held during the 
year and attendance by each director has been disclosed below:
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(n)
 

The
 

board has been provided with detailed in house briefings and 
information package to acquaint them with the code, applicable laws, 
their duties and responsibilities to enable them to effectively manage the 
affairs of the company for and on behalf of the shareholders.

 
 
            

Staff Retirement Benefits

 
            

An unfunded gratuity scheme has been maintained. Provision has been 
made in the financial statements accordingly for permanent employees 
of the company.

 
 
             
           

Auditors

 
           

The Auditors M/s. Tahir Siddiqi & Co; Chartered Accountants are retiring 
at the conclusion of forthcoming Annual General Meeting

 

and being 
eligible have offered

 

their services for the next term.

 

The

 

Auditors 
confirmed

 

that they have been given satisfactory rating under the 
Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant with the 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics, as adopted by the

 

ICAP. The Audit Committee and the Board 
recommended their re-appointment by the shareholders at the Annual 
General Meeting of Company as Auditors for the year ended June 30, 
2019.

 
             
            

Modification in Auditors Report

 
 
            

The pattern of Auditors report has been modified

 

as per Companies 
Act, 2017. Therefore the auditors report is issued in its new pattern.

 
             
            

Pattern of Shareholding

 
            

The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2018

 

along with disclosures 
as required by the Code of Corporate Governance is annexed. 

 
 

 
 

NO.  

 
 

Name of Director  

 
Board 

Meetings  

 
Audit Committee 

Meetings  

 
HR& R 

Committee 
Meetings 

 

1    Mr. Kamran Khan                    7  N/A  N/A 

2    Mr. Momin Qamar  7  N/A  N/A 

3    Mr. Yousaf  Kamran Khan  6  4  1  

4    Mr. Qasim Khan  5  4  N/A 

5    Mrs. Samina Kamran  6  N/A  1  

6    Mr. Muhammad Tawassal 
Majid                   

 
7  4  1  

7
   

Mr. Imran Chaudhry
 

6
 

N/A
 

N/A
 

8
   

Mr. Agha Hamayun Khan
 

7
 

N/A
 

N/A
 

 
Total Number of Meetings Held

 
7

 
4

 
1

 
     



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        

                                           

 
 
 
 

Momin Qamar Agha Hamayun Khan
Director Chief Executive
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Post Balance Sheet Events

 
             

            

There has been no material changes in the financial statements date 
and the reporting date except progress made in upgradation of plant 
Line - 2.

 
 

            

Acknowledgement

 
            

The Directors are grateful to the Company ’s shareholders, financial 
institutions and valued customers for their continued cooperation, 
support and patronage.

  

The Directors ackno wledge the efforts and dedicated services and hard 
work put in by the staff members , executives.
For and on behalf of the Board
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS 2017

 
 

Name of Company:      Flying Cement Company Limited

 

Year Ending          :      30 th

 

June 2018

 
 
 

The company has complied with

 

the requirements

 

of the Regulations in the following 
manner: 

 
 

1.

 

The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

 
 
                

Description              Number of Directors

 

a)

          

Male                                   6

 

b)

          

Female    

                              

 1

 
 

2.

 

The composition

 

of board is as follows:

 

      
        
        

 

a) Independent Director          1
b) Non Executive Directors      5
c) Executive Director               1

 
 

 
 
 

3.

 

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more 
than five listed companies, including this Company (excluding the listed 
subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable)

 
 

4.

 

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate 
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its 
supporting policies and procedures.

 

 
5.

 

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy 
and significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of 
significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended 
has been maintained.  

 
 6.

 
All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant 
matters have been taken by the board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant 
provision of the Act and these Regulations.
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7.  The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his 

absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has 
complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating Minutes of Meeting of Board. Written notices of 
the Board meetings, along-with agenda and working papers were circulated at 
least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were 
appropriately recorded and circulated.

 
 

8.

 

The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for 
remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and these regulations.

 
 

 

9.

 

Following Directors have completed the certificatiion under Directors’ Trainings Program. 
 

 

Name of Chief Executive officer          1- Agha Hamayun Khan

 

Name of Director:  Non Executive       2- Yousaf Kamran Khan

 

Name of Director:  Non Executive       3- Qasim Khan                       

 
 

10.

 

No new appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary or Head 
of Internal Audit has been made during the Year.

 

 

11.

 

The Financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEO and 
CFO before approval of the Board.

 

 

12.

 

The Board has formed an Audit Committee,

 

HR and Remuneration Committee

 

It 
comprises of three members each , all of them are non-

 

Executive Directors and the 
chairman of the committee is an independent director. 

 

 

             

AUDIT COMMITTEE

 

Mr. Muhammad

 

Tawassal  Majid

       

Chairman

       

Independent Director

 

Mr. Qasim Khan 

   

Member

      

Non Executive Director

 

Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan 

              

Member

     

Non Executive Director

 
 

HUMAN

 

RESOURCE AND 

 

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 

Mr. Muhammad

 

Tawassal  Majid

 

Chairman

    

Independent Director

 
Mrs. Samina Kamran

                

Member

     

Non Executive Director

 

Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan 

               

Member

     

Non Executive Director

 13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, 
documented and advised to the Committee for compliance.
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15.

 

The Board has setup an effective Internal Audit function which is considered 
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with policies 
and procedures of the company.

 16.
 

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that neither the firm nor any of the 
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children at any time since the last 
Annual General Meeting held, purchased, sold or took any position in the shares of 
the company or any of its associated companies or undertakings and that the firm 
and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP. 

17.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been 
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the listing 
regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard.  

18.
 

We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been 
complied with. 

 
 

     

On behalf of the Board of Directors
 

 
 

        

                                           

 
 
 
 

Momin Qamar Agha Hamayun Khan
Director Chief Executive

 

      

      

 
 

  

14. The frequency of meetings(Quarterly/Half Yearly/Yearly) of the Committees were as
per followings:

Audit Committee: Met four time during the year.

Human Resource And Remuneration Committee : Met once in the year.
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH  

THE BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

 

Lahore:   

 

     

 Tahir Siddiqi & Co. 

October 05, 2018  

 

       

 Chartered Accountants                                   

 

   

 

  

.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the 

Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code 

and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is 

limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the 

Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 

and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 

required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal controls covers all risks and controls, or to 

form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance 

procedures and risks.

The Regulations requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of 

the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party 

transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in 

arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording 

proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism and also ensure compliance with the 

requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017  We are only required and have ensured 

compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of 

Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to 

determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not. 

 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best 

practices contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

.

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of 

Corporate Governance Regulations 2017 for the year ended June 30, 2018, prepared by the Board of 

Directors of Flying Cement Company Limited (the Company) to comply with the requirements of regulation 

40 of the Regulations
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 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

  MEMBERS OF FLYING CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
 

 
 
 Opinion

 
In our opinion, the annexed  financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company  as at June 30, 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan.  

 

Basis for Opinion  
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our

 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company

 
in accordance with the International Ethics

 
Standards Board 

for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the 
Chartered

 
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
 

believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

 
 

Key Audit Matters
 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit

 

of the annexed

 

financial statements of the current year. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the annexed

 

financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

 

on these matters.

 
 
 
 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Flying Cement Company Limited, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, 

notes to the annexed financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

the statement of changes in equity and the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and 
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Following are the Key Audit Matters:  
 

S.NO Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 

 
 

   (i) 

 
 
Fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 
 
As stated in note 4.2 to the annexed financial 
statements, the fourth schedule to the 
Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to the 
Company for the first time for the preparation 
of the annexed financial statements.  
 
 
The Companies Act, 2017 has also brought 
certain Changes with regard to preparation and 
presentation of the annexed financial 
statements of the Company.  
 
 
As part of this transition to the requirements, 
the management performed a gap analysis to 
identify differences between the previous 
financial reporting framework and the current 
financial reporting framework and as a result 
certain changes were made in the Company’s 
annexed financial statements which are 
included in notes 4.7, 24.2, 30 and 31 to the 
annexed financial statements.  
 
 
In view of the extensive impacts in the annexed 
financial statements due to first time 
application of the fourth schedule to the 
Companies Act, 2017, we considered it as a key 
audit matter.  

 
 
 
 
 

We reviewed and understood the requirements of the  
fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017. Our audit 
procedures included the following: 
 
• Considered the management’s process to identify  
    the additional disclosures required in the Company’s 
    annexed financial statements. 
 
• Obtained relevant underlying supports for the additional      

disclosures and assessed their appropriateness for the 
sufficient audit evidence. 

 
• Verified on test basis the supporting evidence for the 

additional disclosures and ensured appropriateness of 
the disclosures made. 
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    (ii) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   (iii) 

 

Revenue 

Refer to note 21 to the financial statements 

The Company is engaged in the production and 

sale of ordinary portland cement. 

The Company recognized revenue from the 

sale of cement of Rs.2,910.361 million for the 

year ended 30 June 2018. 

We identified recognition of revenue is one of 
the key performance indicator of the 
Company and gives rise to an inherent risk 
that revenue could be subject to 
misstatement to meet goals or targets. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Capital Work in Progress- at cost 

Refer notes 14.5 and 14 to the financial 

statements. 

The Company has made significant capital 

expenditure of Rs. 1,087.678 million during the 

year on expansion of Line 2. 

We identified capitalization of plant and 

equipment as a key audit matter because there 

is a risk that amounts being capitalized may not 

meet the capitalization criteria with related 

implications on capitalization of borrowing costs 

and depreciation charge for the year. 

 

 

 

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of 
revenue included the following: 

- Obtaining an understanding of the process 
relating to recognition of revenue and assessing 
the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of key internal controls over 
recording of revenue;  

- Comparing a sample of revenue transactions 
recorded during the year with sale orders, sale 
invoices, delivery orders and other relevant 
underlying documents. 

- Comparing a sample of revenue transactions 
recorded around the year end with the sale 
orders, transportation advices, sale invoices, 
delivery orders and other relevant underlying 
documentation to assess if the related revenue 
was recorded in the appropriate accounting 
periods; 
- Comparing the details of a sample of journal 
entries posted to revenue accounts during the 
year, which met certain specific risk -based criteria, 
with the relevant underlying documentation.  
 
 
 
 
Our audit procedures to assess the capitalization 

of property, plant & equipment, amongst others, 

included the following: 

. Understanding the design and implementation of 

management controls over capitalization and 

performing tests of control over authorization of 

capital expenditure and accuracy of its recording 

in the system: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  (iv) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stocks  

Stock & packing material in trade as disclosed 

in note 17 to the annexed financial statements 

includes: 

. Raw materials comprising limestone, clay, 

gypsum, laterite and 

. Work-in-progress mainly comprising clinker. 

Further, store & spares and stock in trade as 

disclosed in note 16 and 17 to the annexed 

financial statements include coal. 

 

 

 

. Testing, on sample basis, the costs incurred on projects 

with supporting documentation and contracts;  

. Assessing the nature of costs incurred including 

borrowing costs for the capital projects through testing, 

on sample basis, of amount recorded and considering 

whether the expenditure meets the criteria for 

capitalization as per the accounting policy and applicable 

accounting standards; and 

. Inspecting supporting documents for the date of 

capitalization when project was ready for its intended use 

to assess whether depreciation commenced and further 

capitalization of costs ceased from that date and assessing 

the useful life assigned by management including testing 

of related depreciation. 

 
 
 
The Company performs annual inventory counts at the 

year end and issue prior notification of procedures to be 

performed for such inventory counts. Our audit 

procedures to assess the existence of inventory included 

the following: 

- Attended physical inventory counts performed by the 

Company. 

-  Assessed the management's process of measurement of 
stockpiles and the determination of values using 
conversion of volumes and density to total weight and  the 
related yield. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s reports thereon. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

 
 

 

 

The above inventory items are stored in 

purpose built sheds, stockpiles and silos. As the 

weighing of these inventories is not practicable, 

management assesses the reasonableness of 

the quantities on hand by obtaining 

measurement of stockpiles and converting 

these measurements. The Company also 

involves an external surveyor in the inventory 

count process. 

Due to the significance of inventory balance 

and related estimations involved, this is 

considered as a key audit matter. 

 

 

. Obtained and reviewed the inventory count report of the 

management's external surveyor and assessed its 

accuracy on a sample basis. 

 

 
 
    (v) 

 

Current Liabilities 

The Directors / Shareholders funded from their 

own sources to accomplish the B.M.R plan of 

the company amounting to Rs.1,515,674,892 

as appearing in the long term loan. The 

Directors / shareholders also paid / adjusted 

from their own sources to different creditors 

outstanding in the company amounting to 

Rs.1,210,556,920 as shown in the current 

liabilities. 

Due to the significance of a material amount 

involved and a liability on directors & 

Shareholders behalf this is considered as a key 

audit matter. 

 

 

Obtained the confirmation from the directors of the 

company regarding repayment of the outstanding amount 

within 1 year time. 

.we reviewed and obtained the Company’s annual budget 

and projection for next year, as to how Company will 

repay the outstanding amount. 

 



Flying Cement Company Limited
Annual Report 201828

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

 
 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

 
 Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance

 

with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan 
and the Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal

 

control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free

 
from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
 

 In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as

 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
 

unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

  
 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for  the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free  from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are  considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain

 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 
 
 
•

 
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or

 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
 

appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

 

higher

 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

 

or the override of internal control.

 
 

•

 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in

 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s

 

internal control.
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•

 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related

 

disclosures made by management.

 
 •

 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit

 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

 

the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw

 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

the
 

financial statements or, if such disclosures
 

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

 auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
 

to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

 
 •

 
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content  of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures,

 
and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and  significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical  requirements regarding  independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the

 
audit of the financial statements of the current year and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
 

auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances,

 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would
 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication .

 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
 

 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

 
 

(a) 

 

Proper

 

books of account have been kept by the Company as

 

required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017);

 
 

(b) 

 

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of

 

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
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the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
 

the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

 
 (c)

   
Investments

 
made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were  

for the
 

purpose of the Company’s
 
business; and

 
 

(d)    in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance,                
1980(XVIII of 1980).  

 
 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Sarah 
Tahir Siddiqui.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tahir Siddiqi & Co
 

Chartered Accountants
 

 

Lahore
 

Date: October 05, 2018
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2018 2017

Note Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES

Authorized share capital

200,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs 10/- each. 2,000,000,000
     

2,000,000,000
   

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

176,000,000, ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each.
5 1,760,000,000

     
1,760,000,000

   
Reserves

6 692,095,204
        

479,767,158
      

2,452,095,204
     

2,239,767,158
   Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

7 1,466,634,998
     

1,497,415,385
   NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term liabilities 8 2,572,520,644

     
1,063,501,913

   Long term deposits 9 14,005,340

          

13,505,340

        Deferred liabilities 10 592,413,717

        

593,395,965

      3,178,939,701

     

1,670,403,218

   
CURRENT  LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 11 1,681,337,685

     

1,706,409,489

   Unclaimed Dividend 47,454

               

47,454

             Short term finances 12 705,597,637

        

81,052,367

        
Current portion of long term finance 8 237,249,000

        

-

                    
Provision for taxation 28 39,632,839

          

33,809,723

        
2,663,864,615

     

1,821,319,033

   
TOTAL LIABILITIES

5,842,804,316

     

3,491,722,251

   
Contingencies and commitments 13 -

                       

-

                    TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,761,534,518

     

7,228,904,794

   ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant & equipment 14 6,639,761,686

     

5,636,893,465

   

Long term security deposits 15 31,416,883

          

18,593,160

        CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares & loose tools 16 727,988,564

        

438,035,187

      

Stock in trade 17 316,862,420

        

210,155,475

      

Trade debts 18 8,590,135

            

3,429,583

          

Advances, deposits, prepayments & other receivables 19 1,922,032,767

     

906,698,199

      

Cash and bank balances 20 114,882,063

        

15,099,725

        

      

3,090,355,949

     

1,573,418,169

   
TOTAL ASSETS 9,761,534,518 7,228,904,794

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

 
 
 
 

Momin Qamar Agha Hamayun Khan
Director Chief Executive

 

      

      

     Muhammad Jamil

        

     

     

Chief Financial Officer

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT JUNE  30, 2018
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017

Note Rupees Rupees

Sales 21 2,910,361,399
     

2,470,224,763
   Cost of Sales 22 (2,653,476,436)

    
(2,266,867,959)

 

Gross Profit 256,884,963
        

203,356,804
      

Operating Expenses

Distribution Expenses 23 (7,314,275)           (6,059,253)        
Administrative Expenses 24 (46,480,725)         (39,343,994)      
Other Operating Expenses 25 (17,815,495)         (15,363,151)      

(71,610,495)         (60,766,398)      

Operating Profit 185,274,468        142,590,405      

Finance Cost 26 (43,865,443)
         

(8,084,273)
        

Other Income 27 91,725,324
          

64,374,591
        

Profit Before Taxation 233,134,349
        

198,880,723
      

Taxation 28 (51,626,560)

         

(37,624,875)

      

Profit After Taxation 181,507,789

        

161,255,848

      

Earnings Per Share (before tax) - Basic 29 1.32

                     

1.13

                   

Earnings Per Share (after tax) - Basic 29 1.03

                     

0.92

                   

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

        

                                           

 
 
 
 

Momin Qamar Agha Hamayun Khan
Director Chief Executive

 

      

      

     Muhammad Jamil

        
    

 

     

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 181,507,789        161,255,848      

Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income 39,870                 75,967               

Total Comprehensive income  for the year 181,547,659
        

161,331,815
      

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

        

                                           

 
 
 
 

Momin Qamar Agha Hamayun Khan
Director Chief Executive

 

      

      

     Muhammad Jamil

        

     

     

Chief Financial Officer



Flying Cement Company Limited
Annual Report 201834

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017

Note Rupees Rupees

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 233,134,349
       

198,880,723
     

Adjustment for:
Depreciation 92,128,873

         

94,074,704

       

Provision for gratuity 282,785

              

268,547

            

Loss on sale of assets -

                      

1,463,371

         

Finance cost 43,865,443

         

8,084,273

         

136,277,101

       

103,890,895

     

369,411,450

       

302,771,618

     

(289,953,377)

      

(164,651,229)

    

(106,706,945)

      

8,074,268

         

(Increase) / Decrease inTrade debts (5,160,552)

          

(2,310,629)

        

(902,467,404)

      

(353,392,680)

    

(25,071,804)

        

98,531,406

       

(959,948,632)

      

(110,977,246)

    

Gratuity Paid (123,700)

             

-

                    

Taxes paid (159,772,071)

      

(111,706,507)

    

Net Cash from Operating Activities (1,119,844,403)

   

(222,683,753)

    

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Fixed Capital Expenditure (1,094,997,093)

   

(459,576,342)

    

Sale proceed of assets -

                      

9,520,000

         

Long Term Security deposit (12,823,723)

        

-

                    

Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities (1,107,820,816)

   

(450,056,342)

    

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Finance cost paid (43,865,443)

        

(28,523,103)

      

Short Term Finance 237,249,000

       

-

                    

Long term finance 1,509,018,731

    

699,314,488

     

Long term deposits 500,000

              

-

                    

Net Cash from Financing Activities 1,702,902,288

    

670,791,385

     

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (524,762,931)

      

(1,948,710)

        

Cash and Cash Equivalents - at the beginning of the year (65,952,642)

        

(64,003,932)

      

Cash and Cash Equivalents - at the end of the year 37 (590,715,573)

      

(65,952,642)

      

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Cash generated from operations

(Increase) / Decrease in Stores, spares & loose tools
(Increase) / Decrease in Stock-in-trade

(Increase) / Decrease in Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase in Trade and other Payables

        

                                           

 
 
 
 

Momin Qamar Agha Hamayun Khan
Director Chief Executive

 

      

      

     Muhammad Jamil

        
    

 

    
 

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED  JUNE 30, 2018

  Ordinary Share 

Capital                             

(Rs.) 

Accumulated  

Profit / (Loss)                       

(Rs.)

Capital Reserve         

(Rs.)

 Total                        

(Rs.)                    

Balance as at July  01, 2016 1,760,000,000
     

160,047,791
   

126,978,994
         

2,047,026,785
  

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year -
                       161,331,815   -                        161,331,815     

Incremental depreciation -                       31,408,558     -                        31,408,558       

Balance as at June 30, 2017 1,760,000,000     352,788,164   126,978,994         2,239,767,158  

Total Comprehensive Income for the year -
                       

181,547,659
   

-
                        

181,547,659
     

Incremental depreciation -
                       

30,780,387
     

-
                        

30,780,387
       

Balance as at June 30, 2018 1,760,000,000

     

565,116,210

   

126,978,994

         

2,452,095,204

  

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

        

                                           

 
 
 
 

Momin Qamar Agha Hamayun Khan
Director Chief Executive

 

      

      

     Muhammad Jamil

        
    

 

     

Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated as Public Limited Company on December 24, 1992 under the Companies Ordinance,
1984. The company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (Formely Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges).
The main objective of the company is to manufacture and sell the cement. The registered office of the company is situated
at 103 Fazil Road, Lahore Cantt. and the factory in Khushab.

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017 ; and

 -   Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES          

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and reporting standards requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
estimates and judgments which are significant to the financial statements:

(a) recognition of taxation and deferred tax;

(b) determining the residual value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment;

(c) accounting for post employment benefits;

(d) impairment of inventories / adjustment of their net realizable value.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Accounting Convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for those as stated in the
respective policies and notes given here under.  

4.2 New Accounting Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations.

(a)

Promulgation of Companies Act, 2017

(b)

Changes have been made in respect of the disclosure and presentation of the financial statements through promulgation
of Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) with effect from May 30, 2017. However, the applicability of the Act in relation to the
preparation of the financial statements has been deferred by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
through its Circular 17 dated July 20, 2017 for the companies having financial closure on or before June 30, 2017.

Amendments to approved accounting and reporting standards which are effective during the year ended June 30, 2018.

There were certain new amendments to the approved accounting and reporting standards which became effective during
the year ended June 30, 2018 but are considered not be relevant or have any significant effect on the Company's financial
reporting excepts as mentioned below and are, therefore, not disclosed in these unconsolidated financial statements.

The third and fourth schedule to the Companies Act 2017 became applicable to Company for the first time for the
preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017 (including it third and fourth
schedules) forms and integral part of the statutory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company and amongst
others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in relation to various elements of the financial statements.
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Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flow' became effective during the year. The amendments requires disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes. Accordingly, these disclosures have been included in the note 35
to these financial statements.

The certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting and reporting standards that will
be mandatory for the Company's annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018.However, these
amendments will not have any significant impact on the financial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not been
disclosed in the unconsolidated financial statements. During the current year the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) has adopted IFRS 9 'Revenue from Customers' and IFRS 16 'Leases' which will not have any significant
impact on the financial reporting of the Company.

4.3 Property, Plant & Equipment

4.3.1 Owned

           
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

except for freehold land and capital work-in-progress which are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account, as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. 

An item of property, plant & equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Profit & Loss Account in the year the asset is
derecognized.

The carrying values of the Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If such indications exist and where the carrying
values exceed the recoverable amount, the assets are written down to the recoverable amounts.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment is charged to Profit and Loss Account on the reducing balance method,
over its estimated useful life at annual rates mentioned in note 14 after taking into account their residual values.
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which property, plant and
equipment is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which property, plant and equipment
is disposed off. 

Assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
financial year end.

4.4 Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. These costs are transferred to fixed assets 
as and when assets are available for use.

4.5 Stock - in - trade

These are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The methods used for the calculation of cost are as follows:

(a) Raw and packing material

At weighted average cost comprising quarrying / purchase price, transportation, government levies and other overheads.

(b) Work-in-process and finished goods

At weighted average cost comprising direct cost of raw material, labour and other manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost necessary 
to make sale.

4.6 Stores, spares & loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. The cost is determined on weighted average cost
basis. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value and other charges thereon accumulated at the balance
sheet date.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective.(c)
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4.7 Taxation

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates after taking into account tax credits,
rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to
provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of tax. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent to which it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference, unused tax loss, and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit & loss
account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date. 

4.8 Trade Debts

Debtors originated by the company are recognized and carried at the original invoice value. Bad debts are written off,
when identified.

4.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances with banks on current , saving and deposit accounts and short
term borrowings under mark-up arrangements.

4.10 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at the cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for the
goods and services received, whether or not invoiced to the company.

4.11 Mark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at amortized cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing
borrowings are stated at amortized cost less subsequent repayments. 

4.12 Borrowing costs 

Mark-up, interest and other direct charges on borrowings are capitalized to the related qualifying asset till substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete. All other mark-up, interest and
related charges are charged to the profit & loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

4.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, and it is
probable that outflow of economic benefits will be required in the balance sheet to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

4.14 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistan rupees using exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction . Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains or losses are accounted for in Profit & Loss Account.

4.15 Financial Assets and liabilities 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The particular measurement methods adopted are considered in individual policy statement associated with
each item.

4.16 Offsetting 

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the company has a legal
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets value
and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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4.17 Impairment

The carrying amount of Company’s assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and impairment losses
are recognized.

4.18 Related Party Transactions 

The Company enters into transactions with related parties on an arm's length basis. Prices for transactions with related
parties are determined using admissible valuation methods, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to
approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so.

4.19 Staff Retirement Benefits

The company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees which provides for the graduated
scale of benefits dependent on the length of service of the employee on terminal date, subject to the completion of
minimum qualifying period of service. Gratuity is based on employee's last drawn salary.

Remeasurement gains / losses as per actuarial valuation done at financial year end are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income and all other expenses are recognised in accordance with IAS-19 "Employee Benefits" in the profit
and loss account. The most recent valuation was carried out as on June 30, 2018 using the “Projected Unit Credit
Method”.

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves 

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these are
approved.

4.21 Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets

(a) Depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on
revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and

(b) An amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from "Surplus on
Revaluation of Fixed Assets account" to accumulated profit / (loss) through Statement of Changes in Equity to record
realization of Surplus to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the year.

4.22 Revenue Recognition

(a) - Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on dispatch of goods to the customers.

(b) - Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment is recorded when title is transferred in favour of transferee.
(c) - Income from Banks is recognized when earned.

The surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the "Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets Account"
shown below equity in the balance sheet in accordance with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance,
1984. The said section was amended through the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002 and accordingly the
Company has adopted the following accounting treatment of depreciation on revalued assets, keeping in view the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's (SECP) SRO 45(1)/2003 dated January 13, 2003.
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2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

5 SHARE CAPITAL

a) Authorized

    200,000,000 (2017: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each. 2,000,000,000          2,000,000,000     

b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up.

-   137,419,189  (2017: 137,419,189) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

   fully paid up in cash. 1,374,191,890          1,374,191,890     

-   22,580,811 (2017: 22,580,811) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

   fully paid up for consideration other than cash - Plant & Machinery 225,808,110             225,808,110        

-   16,000,000  (2017:  16,000,000 ) bonus shares of Rs.10/- each

   fully issued as bonus shares. 160,000,000             160,000,000        

1,760,000,000          1,760,000,000     

5.1 All ordinary share holders have same rights regarding voting, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting

6 RESERVES

Capital Reserve 6.1 126,978,994             126,978,994        

Revenue Reserve 

Un-appropriated Profit/(Loss) 565,151,210             352,788,164        

692,130,204             479,767,158        

6.1

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

7 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS

Opening Balance of Revaluation Surplus 1,497,415,385          1,528,823,943     

Less: Surplus transferred to retained earnings (accumulated loss)

Incremental depreciation 43,971,982               44,869,369          

Deferred Tax effect (13,191,595)             (13,460,811)         

30,780,387               31,408,558          

1,466,634,998          1,497,415,385     

7.1

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

8 LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Loans from banking companies - secured 8.1 972,976,153             484,112,250        

Loans from related parties - unsecured 8.2 1,515,674,892          516,729,322        

Long term creditors 8.3 83,869,599               62,660,341          

2,572,520,644          1,063,501,913     

8.1 LOANS FROM BANKING COMPANIES - SECURED 

National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance 8.1.1 1,160,476,153          384,362,250        

National Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance (WHR) 8.1.2 49,749,000               99,750,000          

1,210,225,153          484,112,250        

Less: current portion shown under current liabilities 237,249,000             -                       

972,976,153             484,112,250        

Capital reserve consists of gain on disposal of 21,296,200 shares by directors / beneficial owners of the company in open market since 2008. This gain
is tendered to the company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

The company got its assets i.e. land, building, plant & machinery revalued on June 30, 2006 on the basis of current market prices by M/s Hasib
Associates (Pvt.) Limited, an independent and approved valuers from Pakistan Banks Association. This amount was credited to Surplus on Revaluation

of Fixed Assets account to comply with the requirements of section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. It includes surplus on revaluation of
freehold land amounting to Rs.114.261 million ( 2017 Rs. 114.261 million). Subsequently the company got its assets revalued in June 2013 by an
independent valuer. However, no material differences were identified.
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8.1.1

8.1.2

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

8.2 LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES - UNSECURED

Directors & shareholders loan 8.2.1 1,515,674,892          516,729,322        

1,515,674,892
          

516,729,322
        

8.2.1

8.3

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

9 LONG TERM DEPOSITS- unsecured

Dealers 9.1 2,805,000                 2,805,000            

Transporters 9.2 11,200,340               10,700,340          

14,005,340               13,505,340          

9.1

9.2

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

10 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred Taxation 10.1 591,449,982             592,551,445

Gratuity 10.2 963,735                   844,520               

592,413,717             593,395,965

10.1 Deferred Taxation - Net

Taxable temporary differences - effect thereof

- Excess of accounting book value of fixed assets over their tax base           1,171,096,295 1,172,040,356

Deductible temporary differences - effect thereof 

- Gratuity                   (289,121)               (253,356)

- Excess Tax / Minimum Tax               (39,632,839)          (33,809,723)

- WPPF & WWF                 (9,521,641)            (7,668,120)

- Unused tax losses (530,202,712)
           (537,757,712)

             591,449,982          592,551,445 

The Company has availed facility of Demand finance of Rs.1,500 million with sub-limit of Import LC-Sight from National Bank of Pakistan at 25% Margin

over Fixed Assets secured against 1st charges of Rs.2,000 million over all present and future fixed assets (Hypothecation/Mortgage) of the company

and personal guarantees of all directors to finance up gradation of production capacity to 4000 tons per day (TPD) from 2000 TPD.

The facility includes a grace period of one year and principal to be repaid in 16 quarterly installments of Rs.93.75 million each. The first installment falls

due at the end of 15th month from lodgment of Import documents. Markup shall be charged at 3 Months KIBOR plus 1.5% p.a.

Sub-limit of LC-Sight includes facility of Rs.1,450 million against nil Cash Margin to finance import requirement for up-gradation of production capacity

to 4000 TPD from 2000 TDP secured against lien on documents of title to Goods and same security packages and sponsor commitment as for Demand

finance facility. The facility will expire on sight and repayment against the facility will be through disbursement of demand finance / own source of

company.

The Company has availed facility of letter of credit-sight limited of Rs.100 million with nil cash margin and markup payable as per schedule of charges of

the bank to import Heat Exchanger.

This include markup free loan from associate companies i.e. Poly Paper & Board Mills (Pvt.) Limited of Rs. 34.3 million, Zaman Paper & Board Mills
(Pvt.) Limited of Rs.10.153 million and Flying Paper Industries Limited Rs.35.148 million.

The Company has availed facility of demand finance as a sub-limit to LC-Sight at nil cash margin with a markup of 3 month KIBOR plus 1.5% p.a to

finance import of Heat Exchanger. The facility will expire on 31-12-2018 including 6 months grace period and principal is to be repaid in 6 quarterly

installments of Rs.16.67 million. The facility of LC-Sight and its sub limit of demand finance are secured against 1st charge of Rs.134 million over all

present and future fixed assets (hypothecation/Mortgage) of the company, lien of import documents and personal guarantees of all Directors.

All these facilities also include commitment of sponsoring directors through pledge of shares.

The directors have personally financed a portion of the expansion project and the loan is interest free. The repayment of the loan will be made after the
completion of the expansion project subject to availability of funds.

These represents interest free security deposits from stockist and are repayable on cancellation of dealership or cessation of business. These are
being utilized by the company in accordance with agreed terms.

These represents interest free security deposits from transporters and are repayable on cancellation of dealership or cessation of business. These are
being utilized by the company in accordance with agreed terms.
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2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

10.2 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position based on the recent actuarial valuation carried on June 30, 2018 are as follows

10.2.1 Present value of defined benefit obligation 963,735

                   

844,520

               

10.2.2 Changes in the present value of defined

Benefit obligation are as follows:

Balance as at July 1 844,520

                   

651,940

               

Charge for the year 282,785

                   

268,547

               

Remeasurement loss/ (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income (39,870)

                    

(75,967)

                

1,087,435

                 

844,520

               

Payment made during the year (123,700)

                  

-

                       

963,735

                   

844,520

               

10.2.3 Charge for the year recognised in the profit or loss is as follows:

Current service cost 210,388

                   

209,872

               

Finance cost 72,397

                     

58,675

                 

Total amount chargeable to profit and loss account 282,785

                   

268,547

               

10.2.4 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales -

                           

-

                       

Distribution cost -

                           

-

                       

Administrative expenses 282,785

                   

268,547

               

Cost of sale of electricity -

                           

-

                       

282,785

                   

268,547

               

10.2.5 Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Expected rate of increase in salary level 8.00% 8.25%

Valuation discount rate 9.00% 9.25%

10.2.6 Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +1% (62,851)

                    

Discount rate -1% 70,432

                     

Long term salary increases +1% 71,890

                     

Long term salary increases -1% (65,292)

                    

10.2.7 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation:

Weighted average duration - in number of years 7 Years
The retirement will at most continue - year 2025

10.2.8 Description of the risks to the Company

The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following risks:

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade Payables 309,108,684

             

1,618,121,569

     

Accrued liabilities 6,772,300

                 

5,805,680

            

Taxes and Other Govt. Levies payable 153,106,693

             

80,739,152

          

Other liabilities 1,743,088

                 

1,743,088

            

Payable Director, Shareholders           1,210,556,920                          -   

          1,681,337,685 1,706,409,489

The director paid from their own sources and adjusted different creditors out standing in the company account at Rs.1,210,556,920.

Final salary risks - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is different than what was assumed. Since the benefit is
 calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount changes similarly.

Withdrawal risks - The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way depending on the beneficiaries' 
service/age distribution and the benefit.  

A sensitivity analysis for the above principal actuarial assumptions as of the statement of financial position date showing how the defined benefit 
obligation would have been affected by changes in the said assumptions is as follows:

Mortality risks - The risk that the actual mortality experince is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries service/age distribution and the
 benefit.
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2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

12 SHORT TERM FINANCES

Loans from banking companies-secured 12.1              705,597,637            81,052,367 

                             -                            -   

             705,597,637            81,052,367 

12.1 LOANS FROM BANKING COMPANIES-SECURED

Banks - secured

Albaraka Islamic Bank 12.1.1              163,034,936              4,323,909 

National Bank of Pakistan 12.1.2              442,562,701            76,728,458 

National Bank of Pakistan (Cash Finance)              100,000,000                          -   

             705,597,637            81,052,367 

-
                           

-
                       

705,597,637
             

81,052,367
          

12.1.1

12.1.2

All these facilities also include commitment of sponsoring directors through pledge of shares.

Fresh Cash Finance - Hypo Facility for Rs 100 M to Finance working capital requirement of the company against First Pari Passu charge of the

company amounting to Rs 133.50 Million, First Charge over fixed assets of the company amounting to Rs 133.50 Million and personal guarantees of all

Directors.

The Company has availed facility of demand finance as a sub-limit to LC-Sight at nil cash margin with a markup of 3 month KIBOR plus 1.5% p.a to

finance import of Heat Exchanger. The facility will expire on 31-12-2018 including 6 months grace period and principal is to be repaid in 6 quarterly

installments of Rs.16.67 million. The facility of LC-Sight and its sub limit of demand finance are secured against 1st charge of Rs.134 million over all

present and future fixed assets (hypothecation/Mortgage) of the company, lien of import documents and personal guarantees of all Directors.

A letter of credit facility usance / acceptance 180 days of Rs. 22.50 million (2017: Rs. 42.50 million) is obtained from Albaraka Islamic Bank (Pakistan)

Limited with a sub limit of letter of guarantee of Rs. 0.20 million ( 2017: Rs. 0.20 million), Rs 20 Million LC Usance / Acceptance facility against 100%

Cash Margin, Rs 50 Million LC Sight/Usance clubbed with similar credit limit of Flying Paper Industries Limited, Rs 235 Million LC Usance/Acceptance

(OTT) to meet the contractual and import requirements of the company. The finance is secured against Ranking charge over current assets of the

company valuing Rs. 144 million, Ranking charge over Fixed assets of the company valuing Rs.300 million, lien over import documents valuing Rs.

277.5 million and personal guarantee of all Directors of the company. Mark-up is charged as per bank's Schedule of charges.

The Company has availed facility of Demand finance of Rs.1,500 million with sub-limit of Import LC-Sight from National Bank of Pakistan at 25% Margin

over Fixed Assets secured against 1st charges of Rs.2,000 million over all present and future fixed assets (Hypothecation/Mortgage) of the company

and personal guarantees of all directors to finance up gradation of production capacity to 4000 tons per day (TPD) from 2000 TPD.

The facility includes a grace period of one year and principal to be repaid in 16 quarterly installments of Rs.93.75 million each.. The first installment falls

due at the end of 15th month from lodgment of Import documents. Markup shall be charges at 3 Months KIBOR plus 1.5% p.a

Sub-limit of LC-Sight includes facility of Rs.1,450 million against nil Cash Margin to finance import requirement for up-gradation of production capacity

to 4000 TPD from 2000 TPD secured against lien on documents of title to Goods and same security packages and sponsor commitment as for Demand

finance facility. The facility will expire on sight and repayment against the facility will be through disbursement of demand finance / own source of

company.

During the year Company has enhanced financing from National Bank of Pakistan through letter of credit facility of usance (180 Days) to Rs. 700 million

(wherein Rs 400 Million is OTT and Rs 300 Million is regular limit) from 300 million at 20% Cash Margin with expiry of 31-03-2019 for the purpose of

importing coal, packing material and machinery parts to be repaid through internal Cash Flows routed through Sinking Fund created for the purpose.

The facility is secured against 1st charge of Rs.934 million over all present and future fixed assets of the Company, personal guarantees of all Directors,

Accepted Bills of Exchange and Trust Receipt.

The Company has availed facility of letter of credit-sight limited of Rs.100 million with nil cash margin and markup payable as per schedule of charges of

the bank to import Heat Exchanger.
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13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1 Contingencies

13.1.1

13.2

13.3

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

14 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Operating Assets - tangible 14.1           4,556,392,342       4,641,202,214 

Capital Work in Progress - at cost 14.5           2,083,369,344          995,691,251 

          6,639,761,686       5,636,893,465 

2018 2017

  - Excise Collection Office, Sindh Development & Maintenance  amounting to Rs. 0.20 million

The Albaraka Islamic Bank has issued letter of guarantees on behalf of the company for the following:

The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) has issued a show cause notice to the company for an increase in prices of cement across the

country. As a result of it an amount of Rs. 12 million was imposed as a penalty. The case is currently before the Honorable High Court. The Court

granted the stay order restricting the CCP to pass any adverse order(s) against the show cause notices issued to the cement manufacturers.

Sales tax audit was conducted in 2015 and an impugned liability of Rs. 40.9 million was determined out of which Rs. 20 million has been deposited by

the company under protest. The company feeling aggrieved filed an appeal before appellate tribunal which is pending yet and is likely to be decided in

favour of the company.
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2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

14.4 Had there been no revaluation the carrying amount of the assets would be:

Land 10,761,246

               

6,276,246

            

Building 210,314,724

             

214,606,861

        

Plant & Machinery 2,040,385,697

          

2,082,026,221

     2,261,461,667

          

2,302,909,328

     14.5 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Building 167,274,390

             

113,132,700

        
Plant & machinery 1,916,094,954

          

882,558,551

        

2,083,369,344

          

995,691,251

        

15 LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

Security deposits-WAPDA 31,416,883
               

18,593,160
          

31,416,883
               

18,593,160
          

15.1 These are security deposits held with WAPDA and do not carry any markup arrangement.

16 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS 

Stores & Spares 8,671,151                 9,759,028            

Furnace oil, coal & lubricants 719,317,413             428,276,159        

727,988,564
             

438,035,187
        

17 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw & Packing material 20,742,954
               

19,833,727
          

Work in process 22 284,575,094
             

188,257,571
        

Finished goods 22 11,544,372

               

2,064,177

            

316,862,420

             

210,155,475

        

18 TRADE DEBTS- considered good though unsecured 8,590,135

                 

3,429,583

            

19 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS & OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers - Unsecured, considered good 329,160,936

             

72,927,548

          

Advances to staff - Unsecured, considered good 331,400

                   

376,400

               

Margin held by banks 186,641,873

             

90,984,169

          

Advance income tax 417,359,250

             

304,492,086

        

Sales tax & excise duty tax year 2013 20,000,000

               

20,000,000

          

Other advances 968,539,308

             

417,917,996

        

1,922,032,767

          

906,698,199

        

20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

In Hand 2,847,150

                 

4,662,383

            

At Banks- current accounts 112,034,913

             

10,437,342

          

114,882,063

             

15,099,725
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2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

21 SALES

Gross Sales

      Local - Cement 4,335,489,989

          

3,452,058,357

     

      Material Transferred to Associate -

                           

14,938,622

          

4,335,489,989

          

3,466,996,979

     

Less :

      Sales Tax 743,480,981

             

590,439,616

        

      Excise Duty 672,107,250

             

397,273,000

        

      Rebate/Commission on Sales 9,540,359

                 

9,059,600

            

1,425,128,590

          

996,772,216

        

NET SALES 2,910,361,399

          

2,470,224,763

     
2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

22 COST OF SALES

Raw Material Consumed 203,532,297

             

83,235,912

          
Furnace Oil, Diesel, Coal and Lubricants consumed 1,124,893,843

          

801,799,441

        
Packing Material consumed 262,233,742

             

188,264,866

        
Stores and Spares consumed 3,561,462

                 

7,983,451

            Material Transferred to Associate -

                           

12,768,053

          Salaries , Wages and Benefits 64,661,963

               

56,455,675

          Water Charges 1,284,564

                 

1,213,467

            Electricity 955,114,072

             

966,694,691

        
Extraction Charges 45,470,990

               

35,725,500

          
Repair and Maintenance 2,885,085

                 
2,332,774

            
Vehicle Running Expenses 2,398,343

                 
3,137,004

            

Communication 119,180
                   

208,056
               

Entertainment 71,310                     69,897                 

Printing and Stationery 43,950                     48,835                 

Travelling and Conveyance 243,340                   332,140               

Other Manufacturing Expenses 1,561,713                 2,700,300            

Depreciation 14.2 91,198,300               93,040,734          

2,759,274,154
          

2,256,010,796
     

Work In Process

Opening stock 188,257,571
             

197,470,634
        

Closing stock (284,575,094)

           

(188,257,571)

       

(96,317,523)

             

9,213,063

            

Cost of Goods Manufactured 2,662,956,631

          

2,265,223,859

     

Finished Goods

Opening stock 2,064,177

                 

3,708,277

            

Closing stock (11,544,372)

             

(2,064,177)

           

(9,480,195)

               

1,644,100

            

Cost of Sales 2,653,476,436

          

2,266,867,959

     



2018 2017

23 DISTRIBUTION COST Rupees Rupees

Salaries , Wages and Benefits 6,861,794                 5,652,542            

Rent, Rates and Taxes 220,400
                   

165,000
               

Travelling, Conveyance and Vehicle Running 57,294
                     

23,030
                 

Communication 43,410
                     

30,938
                 

Electricity, Water & Sui Gas 18,736
                     

16,147
                 

Advertisement 98,750
                     

148,878
               

Entertainment & Miscellaneous 13,891
                     

22,718
                 

 

7,314,275

                 

6,059,253

            

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

24 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries , Wages and Benefits 24.1 7,911,532

                 

6,459,124

            

Directors' Remuneration 22,800,000

               

17,100,000

          

Travelling, Conveyance and Vehicle Running 3,092,530

                 

2,321,125

            

Legal and Professional 2,494,400

                 

2,129,000

            

Communication

 

2,869,121

                 

2,242,036

            

Charity and  Donation 24.2 272,100

                   

285,950

               

Fee and Subscription 2,229,520

                 

3,124,843

            

Insurance 3,880,949

                 

2,373,638

            

Fine & Penalties -

                           

2,274,309

            

Depreciation 14.2 930,573

                   

1,033,969

            

                       

46,480,725

               

39,343,994

          

24.1 Salaries , Wages and Benefits includes Rs.282,785/- (2017: Rs. 219,378/-) in respect of gratuity.

24.2 The company has paid the charity and donation of Rs. 272,100/-(2017: Rs.285,950/-) and directors or their spouses were not interested in the donee.
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2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

25 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund                12,512,492            10,667,094 

Workers' Welfare Fund                  4,333,003              3,794,057 

Auditors' Remuneration 25.1                     970,000                 902,000 

17,815,495

               

15,363,151

          

25.1 Auditors' Remuneration

Audit Fee 700,000

                   

650,000

               

Half yearly review and CCG certification 220,000

                   

202,000

               

Out of pocket expenses 50,000

                     

50,000

                 

970,000

                   

902,000

               

26 FINANCE COST

Mark up 42,105,696

               

6,676,335

            

Bank Charges and Commission 1,759,747

                 

1,407,938

            

43,865,443

               

8,084,273

            

27 OTHER INCOME

Loss on disposal of fixed assets -

                           

(1,463,371)

           

Sale of Trees & Scrap 71,602,770

               

65,837,962

          

Creditors written off (Over Three Years) 20,122,554

               

-

                       

91,725,324

               

64,374,591

          

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

28 TAXATION

Prior 13,095,184

               

4,717,067

            

Current 39,632,839

               

33,809,723

          

52,728,023

               

38,526,790

          

Deferred (11,01,463)

               

(901,915)

              

51,626,560

               

37,624,875
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28.1

28.2

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

29 EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE-BASIC

There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share, and basic earnings per share is based on:

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 233,184,349             198,880,723        

Profit / (Loss) after taxation 181,507,789             161,255,848        

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 176,000,000             176,000,000        

29.1 Earnings/(Loss) per share (before tax) - Basic 1.32                         1.13                     

29.2 Earnings/(Loss) per share (after tax) - Basic 1.03                         0.92                     

30 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at the end of year. 335 305

Average number of empolyees during the year. 315 295

31 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Nature of transaction 

Purchase of goods, services Relationship 2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

Flying Paper Industries Limited Associate 184,683,551             76,372,185          

Flying Board & Paper Products Limited Associate 96,763,791               93,701,588          

281,447,342             170,073,773        

Nature of transaction 

Sales of goods, services Relationship

Flying Board & Paper Products Limited Associate -                           12,768,053          

-                           12,768,053          

31.1 Year end balances

Payable to related parties. 8.3 83,869,599               62,660,341          

Receivable from related parties 64,832,734               48,232,384          

31.2 All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

(Rupees)

Related parties of the company comprise associated undertakings, directors, key employees and management personnel. Detail of transactions with
related parties except remuneration and benefits to directors and management personnel under their terms of employment, are as under:

Numerial reconciliation between the average tax rate and applicable tax rate has not been presented as the company is subject to the provisions of

minimum tax under section 113 and alternate corporate tax under section 113 C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The applicable income tax rate for subsequent years beyond tax year 2017 was reduced to 30% on account of changes made to the Income Tax

Ordiance, 2001 through Finance Act 2015. Therefore, deferred tax is computed at the rate of 30% applicable to the period when temporary differences
are expected to be reversed / utilized.

(No. of shares)
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33
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

                                  The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

 - Credit risk

 - Liquidity risk

 - Market risk

33.1 Credit risk

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

8,590,135

         

3,429,583

         

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1,155,512,581

  

509,278,565

     

Cash at banks 112,034,913

     

10,437,342

       

1,276,137,629

  

523,145,490

     

Not past due 2,233,435

         

891,692

            

Past due 1-30 days 3,178,350

         

1,268,946

         

Past due 31-60 days 1,889,830

         

754,508

            

Past due 61-90 days 773,112

            

308,662

            

Over 90 days 515,408

            

205,775

            

8,590,135

         

3,429,583

         

33.2 Liquidity risk

At June 30 , 2018

Long term finances

Trade and other payables

Accrued Markup

Short term borrowings

At June 30 , 2017

Long term finances

Trade and other payables

Accrued Markup

Short term borrowings

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date:

Based on historic records, the company believes that no impairment allowance in respect of loans and receivables is required.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to manage liquidity is to ensure as far as
possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The Company is not materially exposed to liquidity risk as substantially obligations / commitments of
the Company are short term in nature and are restricted to the extent of available liquidity. In addition, the Company has obtained finance facilities from various commercial
banks to meet any deficit, if required to meet the short term liquidity commitments.

The Table below show :-

The company's Credit risk exposures are categorized under the following heads:

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date was:

Trade debtors

The trade debts at the balance sheet date are all domestic debts.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the
risks and adherence to the limits. Risk management policies and systems are regularly reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors of the Company oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit Function. Internal Audit
Function undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board.

2,488,651,045

    

2,488,651,045

   

-

                    

-

                   

                        -   
2,488,651,045

    

317,674,072

       

317,674,072

      

317,674,072

      

-

                   

                        -                           -   

-

                      

-

                     

-

                    

-

                   

                        -                           -   

705,597,637

       

705,597,637

      

705,597,637

      

-

                   

                        -                           -   

    3,511,922,754    3,511,922,754    1,023,271,709                      -                           -       2,488,651,045 

1,000,841,572

    

1,000,841,572

   

-

                    

-

                   

                        -   
1,000,841,572

    

1,625,670,337

    

1,625,670,337

   

1,625,670,337

   

-

                   

                        -                           -   

6,600,628

           

6,600,628

          

6,600,628

          

-

                   

                        -                           -   

81,052,367

         

81,052,367

        

81,052,367

        

-

                   

                        -                           -   

    2,714,164,904    2,714,164,904    1,713,323,332                      -                           -       1,000,841,572 

Contractual 

cash flows

Six months or 

less

Six to twelve 

months
One to two years

Contractual 

cash flows

Six months or 

less

Six to twelve 

months
One to two years

Two to five 

years

Carrying amount
Two to five 

years

Carrying amount
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33.3 Market Risk

33.3.1 Interest rate risk

2018 2017 2018 2017

                   8.42                    7.62     705,597,637          81,052,367 

                   8.42                    7.64  1,210,225,153        484,112,250 

                       -                        -                           -   

33.3.1.1 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

33.3.1.2 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for various rate instruments

Rupees Rupees

Increase Profit Decrease Profit

19,158,228
      

(19,158,228)
        

5,651,646
        

(5,651,646)
          

33.3.2 Price risk

33.3.3 Currency Risk

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

Outstanding letter of credits 605,597,637
    

81,052,367
         

Average rate 112.44
             

104.95
                

Reporting date rate 121.50
             

106.85
                

33.3.3.1 Sensitivity Analysis

The effect on profit and loss account is 60,559,764

      

8,105,237

           

33.4 Fair values of the financial instruments

34 Capital Risk Management

2018

Rupees

2017

Rupees

 3,194,248,682     1,081,893,939 

Total Equity  2,452,130,204     2,239,767,158 

 5,646,378,886     3,321,661,097 

Gearing Ratio 56.57% 32.57%

Total Borrowings

Total Capital Employed

In order to maintain or adjust capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as debt divided by total capital employed. Total
capital employed is calculated as equity as shown in the balance sheet plus debt.

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as going concern in order to provide adequate returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost  of capital.

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the foreign currencies with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been higher
by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of outstanding letter of credits.

The weakening of PKR against foreign currencies would have an equal but opposite impact on the post tax profit. The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative
of the effects on (loss)/profit for the year and assets/liabilities of the Company.

The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on profit / (loss) for the year and assets / liabilities of the company.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate
risk or currency risk). The company is not exposed to any price risk as there are no financial instruments at the reporting date that are sensitive to price fluctuations.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or liabilities will fluctuate due to change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivable and
payable exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The company is exposed to currency risk on import of machinery mainly dominated in US dollars. The
Company's exposure to foreign currency risk for US dollars is as follows:

A change of 100 basis points in interest rate at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss by amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in a particular foreign currency rate (if any), remains constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for the previous year:-

As at June 30, 2018

As at June 30, 2017

Long term borrowings

The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore a change in interest rate at the reporting date
would not affect profit and loss account.

(Rupees)

Financial Liabilities

Variable Rate instruments:

Short term borrowings 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments were:

Effective rate in % Carrying Amount 

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of
the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company is exposed to
currency risk and interest rates only.
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35 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration 876,000
              

876,000
             

8,727,273
          

6,545,400
        

12,000,000
         

9,000,000
           

5,236,000
         

4,050,000
         

Medical allowance 87,600
                

87,600
               

872,727
             

654,600
           

1,200,000
           

900,000
              

523,600
            

405,000
            

963,600              963,600             9,600,000          7,200,000        13,200,000         9,900,000           5,759,600         4,455,000         

Number of persons 1 1 1 1 2 2 12 10

35.1 No amount was paid to directors for attending the Board of Direcots meeting.

36 PRODUCTION CAPACITY

Clinker

Cement

Reason for shortfall

37 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash & Bank balances

Short term finances

38 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 05, 2018 by the board of directors of the company. 

GENERAL39

- Figures in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

- Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purposes of comparison. 

Executives

The major reason of short fall in production vis-à-vis production capacity is due to old Plant & Machinery causing frequent break down of the Plant. Further frequent long load
shedding of Electricity also augmented the short fall of the production.

Chief Executive Executive Directors Non Executive Directors

2018 2017 2018 2017

Tons Tons Tons Tons

686,000

             

600,000

             

503,379

           

374,033

              

720,000

             

600,000

             

527,850

           

396,992

              

Installed Capacity Actual production

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

114,882,063

    

15,099,725

         

(705,597,637)

   

(81,052,367)

        

(590,715,574)

   

(65,952,642)

        

        

                                           

 
 
 
 

Momin Qamar Agha Hamayun Khan
Director Chief Executive

 

      

      

     Muhammad Jamil

        
    

 

     

Chief Financial Officer
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Operating and Financial Data

Particulars 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

(Restated)

Operating Results (Rs.)

Net Sales 2,910,361,399  2,470,224,763  2,475,777,927  2,222,797,816  2,064,569,791  841,229,501     

Gross Profit / (Loss) 256,884,963     203,356,804     166,714,477     119,612,703     105,978,256     (5,151,382)        

Pre tax profit / (loss) 233,184,349     198,880,723     195,334,906     188,375,282     151,341,885     29,750,399       

After tax profit / (loss) 181,542,789     161,255,848     145,696,468     117,134,811     100,358,339     11,117,733       

Financial Position (Rs.)

Current Assets 3,090,355,949  1,573,418,169  1,018,604,825  895,760,306     736,287,613     778,473,782     

Current Liabilities 2,663,823,115  1,821,319,033  1,771,924,390  1,805,745,250  1,502,531,941  1,395,684,687  

Property, Plant & Equipment 6,639,761,686  5,636,893,465  5,282,375,198  5,163,980,638  5,234,261,754  5,033,425,637  

Total Assets 9,761,534,518  7,228,904,794  6,319,573,183  6,101,534,104  6,012,342,527  5,853,692,579  

Long Term Liabilities 2,586,525,984  1,077,007,253  377,692,765     278,389,686     633,868,898     717,476,814     

Shareholders Equity 2,452,130,204  2,239,767,159  2,047,026,785  1,869,218,800  1,720,824,278  1,588,864,796  

Ratios (%)

Current Ratio 1.16                  0.86                  0.57                  0.50                  0.49                  0.56                  

Debt to Equity Ratio 56.57% 32.57% 17.22% 13.75% 25.00% 33.39%

Gross Profit to Sale Ratio 8.83% 8.23% 6.73% 5.38% 5.13% -0.61%

Net Profit to Sales Ratio (before tax) 8.01% 8.05% 7.89% 8.47% 7.33% 3.54%

Earnings Per Share (Rs.)

Basic (before tax) 1.32                  1.13                  1.11                  1.07                  0.86                  0.17                  

Basic (after tax) 1.03                  0.92                  0.83                  0.67                  0.57                  0.06                  
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

From To

619 1 100 27195
379 101 500 161354

1303 501 1000 864561
605 1001 5000 1602440
132 5001 10000 1049534
47 10001 15000 600201
30 15001 20000 545200
20 20001 25000 483650
9 25001 30000 254500
6 30001 35000 195700
3 35001 40000 116500
6 40001 45000 255000
9 45001 50000 450000
4 50001 55000 210549
1 55001 60000 56000
2 60001 65000 125800
4 70001 75000 292000
2 80001 85000 170000
1 85001 90000 86500
1 90001 95000 91000
5 95001 100000 497500
1 105001 110000 105500
2 110001 115000 225500
2 120001 125000 250000
1 125001 130000 126000
1 140001 145000 140100
1 180001 185000 182000
1 265001 270000 270000
1 330001 335000 334000
2 425001 430000 860000
1 2160001 2165000 2160050
1 2650001 2655000 2651000
1 3510001 3515000 3510492
1 3645001 3650000 3647050
1 5035001 5040000 5039280
1 7005001 7010000 7009400
1 7230001 7235000 7230291
1 9180001 9185000 9180500
1 9995001 1000000 10000000
1 11055001 11060000 11055550
1 11080001 11085000 11082007

No. of Shareholders
Having Shares

Total Shares Held

1 13800001 13805000 13804500
1 14830001 14835000 14834314
1 16795001 16800000 16799549
1 18295001 18300000 18297298
1 29070001 29075000 29070435

3216 176000000Total
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Particulars Shareholders Shares held Percentage

Directors, CEO, Spouse & Children 8 83,942,504 47.6946

Banks, DFI, NBFI 1 25,000 0.0142

Modarabas, Mutual Funds 1 5,000 0.0028

General Public (Local) 3144 91,001,322 51.7053

General Public (Foreign) 44 325,068 0.1847

Others 18 701,106 0.3984

Total 3216 176,000,000 100
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

SHAREHOLDERS CATEGORY No. of Shares held

DIRECTORS, CEO, THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN
Mr. Muhammad Tawassal Majid 1500
Mr. Imran Chaudhry 500
Mr. Kamran Khan 14834314
Mr. Momin Qamar 29070435
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan 11082007
Mr. Qasim Khan 3647050
Mrs.Samina Kamran 18297298
Mrs. Misbah Momin (W/O Mr. Momin Qamar) 7009400

EXECUTIVES -

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS -

MUTUAL FUNDS 5000

OTHERS 701106

INDIVIDUALS Local 30161223
Foreign 325068

176000000

Munaf Ibrahim 13804500
Umair Ammanullah 10000000
Bilal Qamar 11055550
Imran Qamar 16799549
Muhammad Zaman Ahmed Qamar 9180500

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS,  
NON BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND 
INSURANCE COMPANIES.

25000

*SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE                                                                                                             
(other than those reported in Directors)

60840099

The CEO, Directors, CFO, Head of Internal Auditors, Company  Secretary  
and  their spouses and minor children have made no Sale/Purchase in the 
shares of company during the financial year ended June 30, 2018.

*SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE                                                                                                             
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¬]7�**�VÏX»gz!*g~Z�Zg{Åßg]~Ô1geWseZ],IiÅ�ÛZg�Z�&Ug**);**'×�¿Æ%:

Æ�\)Z¤/t¬�ÛZë:H�H�(;6,ZËÃgx¦�Z**�VÐX

z�ZgZyÃ�z!*g{�gpZ�&ÅYCì�»gWæÙ!»ge&L�¦�zZNX .4

Æ��Ñ:g7ĝÅÂ[&»½Z]Å̂~�ÛZb SRO 470(I)/2016 YÆ%ZÏ�2016#31 .5
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ìX

¥�®8-Åzä

YÃÃeWs»g7gf$ÍgSÆ�ZÖgZ]Æ�B¥�®8-Åzä³BZìX 2018 �y30

Z�Zs

eZ],IivÆ��ZgZyÔâàZ�ZgzVZzg�g@ÆÚ¬zyÔ×e$Zzgçz-$Æ]¦/Zg�X

eZ],IioÅJ�Zzgņ̃s}.â]Zzg»zØV»Z�Zs�D�X

»+$&',Zñ1ge

ñð�

eZ],I

2018 ZÆ',05



Flying Cement Company Limited
Annual Report 2018 71

#Óòv�
ú*"$�Zg~',Zñ�Ñ:Z°k¬x

ë/~

Æ�/Å/» #Óòv� �Á
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FLYING CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

 

25th

 
Annual General Meeting

 
 

Registered Folio /                         
Participant ID No. &                               
A/c No.                               

 
No. of Shares Held.                              

 

PROXY FORM

 IMPORTANT

 
 
Instruments of Proxy will not be considered as 

valid unless deposited or received at the 

Company’s Registered Office at 103-Fazil 

Road, Lahore Cantt. Not later than 48 hours 

before the time of holding the meeting.

 

 
 II / We ______________________________________________________________________               
of __________________________________________________________________ being a 
member of Flying Cement Company Limited

 

and holder of _________ Shares do hereby 
authorize _________________ of ______________________ another member of the company 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me /us and on my /our behalf at the 25th

 
Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,26
th

 
October 2018 at 10:00 hours 

 

or 
adjournment thereof.

 

              

Signature

 
Please affix 

Rupees Five 

revenue stamp 

Witnesses:  
 

 1. Signature:     _________________            2.
 

Signature:     _________________ 

     Name            _________________ 
     

Address:        _________________                           

            

CNIC or Passport 

    __________________                                                                
 

__________________

 
     Name            _________________ 
     

Address:        _________________                           

            

CNIC or Passport 

    __________________                                                                

__________________

Dated 2018

any 
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103-Fazil Road,

Saint John Park,

Lahore Cantt-Pakistan

+92-42-36674301-5 Lines +92-42-36660693 info@flyingcement.com www.flyingcement.com
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